

Wellness Plans



855-478-7920 | 304 Ohio St. | Oshkosh, WI 54902 Revised June 24, 2019

Table of Contents

Overview4
Basic Setup4
Advanced Setup5
Entry Options5
Alternative Codes5
Modify a Plan Entry5
Plan Entry Tab Options6
Selling a Wellness Plan7
Add a Wellness Plan to Medical History7
Recurring Charges8
Altering Recurring Payments8
Wellness Plan Discounting9
Viewing Plan Information10
Upgrading or Cancelling Plans10
Upgrading10
Cancelling a Wellness Plan10
Wellness Plan Versions
Refactored Wellness Plan Renewals13
Wellness Plan Indicators
Wellness Icon
Advanced Option for Displaying Expired Wellness Plan Icons
CID Plan Indicator



	Patient Tab Plan Indicator	13
	Whiteboard Plan Indicator	13
	Appointment Plan Indicator	14
	Plan indicator to Appointment Calendar Printout	14
Well	ness Plans Security Options	15
	Add Plan Generation	15
	Modify Wellness Plans Entries	15
	Remove Wellness Plans	15
	Modify Plan Price Individual Services	15
Repo	orts	16
	Income by Plan Activity	16
	Wellness Plans Report	17
Rem	oving a Wellness Plan from Treatments	18
Addi	tional Enhancements	19
	Medical History Tab for Plans	19
	Client Friendly Print-out of Services Used and Remaining	20
	Doctor Selection Combo-box	22
	Included Services Heading	22



Overview

AVImark's Wellness Plans have been improved for ease of use and increased efficiency. Wellness Plans is a great way to apply automatic discounts for treatments, apply courtesy discounts on other items on the plan, and generate automatic reminders for plan renewal.

Basic Setup

All plan information is stored in the Treatment List. Therefore, to create a Wellness Plan, you want to have a Treatment created for the plan.

- 1. From the menu, click on Work with | Treatment List.
- 2. It is recommended you create a New Category labeled Wellness Plans.
- 3. With the Wellness Plans category selected and your mouse under **Records for Wellness Plans**, right-click | **New**.
- 4. Enter the Code and Description for the new Wellness Plan.
- 5. Enter the **Charge** for the plan.



- 6. Click on the tab labeled Plan Entries. Click Yes if prompted to save the treatment.
- 7. Click Yes if prompted to add a Wellness Plan to this treatment.
- 8. Right-click | **New** to add treatments or inventory items to the plan.
- 9. Enter the **Code** or **Description** to search for the item.



- 10. Double-click to select the item then, if applicable, change the **Discount**, **Count**, **Minimum**. See "Entry Options" on page 5.
- 11. Click **OK** to add the item to the plan.

You can also right-click | Choose and add several items to the plan at once. Then select an item, rightclick | Change to modify the item's Discount, Count, Minimum, and add Alternative Codes.



Advanced Setup

We will take a look at the options for a Wellness Plan Entry and adding Alternative Codes.

Entry Options

Code	Description	Discount	Count	Minimum	Amount
313	Bath by groomer	80.00 🜻	1 🌲	20.00 🗘	25.00 🜩

After selecting an item, you can now define the item's **Discount**, **Count**, and **Minimum**.

- ✓ Discount is used to determine the percentage of discount this particular service is to receive. The default discount is 100%. However, in the case of, grooming, for example, where the cost of grooming can widely vary, you may want to give an 80% discount leaving the client to pay 20% of the grooming cost.
- Count is the number of times this service is to be performed and covered by the plan. Using the grooming example, the Count may be 2. This means the client can bring their pet in twice for grooming services during the duration of the plan.
- ✓ Minimum is the charge for the service if the discount is not 100%. In the case of our Bath by groomer, we will give an 80% discount for grooming; however, the client pays at least \$20.00 for grooming or 20% of the cost whichever is highest.

Alternative Codes

Alternative Codes are additional items that can be selected for the plan if the main plan entry is not valid. In our example of grooming, we have the main code as "Bath by groomer". But if a client has a large breed dog with a double coat, there is more work involved with grooming this pet. Therefore, when this patient comes in for grooming and is on the plan, we can add the Bath, Canine Large Double Coat in place of the Bath by groomer.

Modify a Plan Entry

- 1. From the **Plan Entries** tab, select a plan entry.
- 2. Right-click | Change or double-click on the entry to edit the selected item.
- 3. Modify the entry options, if necessary.
- 4. Under Alternative Codes, right-click | New.
- 5. Search for items by Code or Description.
- 6. Double-click on an item to select it then click **OK**.
- 7. Repeat to add additional Alternative Codes.
- 8. Click **OK** to close the Wellness Plan Entry screen.

You can also right-click | Choose and add several items to the plan at once.

To remove an item from Alternative Codes, right-click | Remove.



Plan Entry Tab Options

Here we will take a closer look at the options located at the bottom of the Plan Entries tab.

Auto-renew	Includ	e Tag Along	s	Calculate P	lan Ch	narge		Tota	I Cost	70.000
First Payment	0.00	*	Cou	rtesy Charge	0.000	‡ %		Total	Price	460.38
Courtesy Class	(none)	-	С	ourtesy Rate	0.00	* *		Total Plan A	nount	0.00
Charge Term Count	12	Monthly	•	Term Count	12	Months	•		Remov	/e Plan

- Auto-renew If checked, the plan automatically renews once the end of the term has been reached.
- Include Tag Alongs If checked, applies the plan discount to any associated entries attached to the included services. Leaving this option unchecked means AVImark will charge normal pricing for tag alongs or apply the Courtesy Rate, if one is defined.
- Any associated or linked entries to included services will automatically be included in the plan when the parent treatment is administered.
- Calculate Plan Charge AVImark will automatically open the Plan Charges screen at the time the Wellness Plan is placed in the patient's Medical History. From within this window you will be able to define recurring charges.
- ✓ First Payment This is the up front payment the client is responsible for when they purchase the plan.
- Courtesy Charge The amount entered here can be used to cover fees such as processing fees and other miscellaneous fees.
- Courtesy Class Choose a Client Discount Class in this field. The discounts associated with this client class will be applied to the patient.
- Courtesy Rate Specify the percentage discount to be allowed on all treatments and items not covered under the plan.
- ✓ Charge Term Count Enter a default number of recurring payments.
- Term Count Defines the length of the plan. In this field, specify the number entered as Days, Weeks, Months, or Years.
- ✓ The Cost, Total Price, and Total Plan Amount are displayed at the bottom right side.
- Remove Plan Once a treatment has been marked as a Plan, the only way to undo the Wellness Plan on the treatment is to click the Remove Plan button. This will remove all information on the Plan Entries tab and remove the Wellness Plan from any patients that might be associated with it.



Selling a Wellness Plan

Selling a Wellness Plan means adding the plan to a patient's Medical History.

Add a Wellness Plan to Medical History

- 1. In a patient's Medical History, right-click | Choose | Treatments.
- 2. Select the Wellness Plan category then select the Wellness Plan.
- 3. Click Done.
- 4. If prompted, select the Wellness Discount to apply to items not covered in the plan.

AVI Patient Wellness Plan Selection			×
Select wellness plan to apply to treatments/items	o non-	covere	d
Wellness Discount Gold Wellness P	lan		•
●	(🗙 Ca	Incel

This will list the current Wellness Plan being sold along with other active plans for this patient and the option to choose **Best Available**. If you wish to only apply the class discount set up on this client or patient, you can choose **Keep Patient Class Discount**. *NOTE*: A patient class discount overrides the client class discount. Select the desired discount option.

Now when a non-plan service is sold, AVImark will apply the discount rate that was chosen here.

if in Options Maintenance you set the Wellness Plan Discount to Wellness Plan Only or Best Available, AVImark will automatically apply those discounts and not let you choose a discount option after the Plan is sold. See "Discount Options" on page <?>.

5. Click OK.

With the Wellness Plan entered into the patient's Medical History, the plan name and expiration date will be automatically viewable from the patient area.

PATIEN	T: Lenox			
Name	Lenox	Codes	Sex S	Added 10-06-16
Birthday	10-07-12 Age 4y	Rabies	62549	Reminded (none)
Breed	Newfoundland	Plan	GOLDWP 01-17-18	Deceased (none)
Color	Black	Weight	135.00 in Ibs	Microchip
Species	Canine	Allergy	(none)	Relation (none)

6. Complete the process of selling the Wellness Plan by posting or creating an invoice.



Recurring Charges

If the Calculate Plan Charge option was selected when creating the Wellness Plan, a Wellness Plan Recurring Charges window will open when the plan is added to Medical History. From within the Wellness Plan Recurring window you can set how the client will pay for the plan.

- ✓ **Total** This is the total price of the Wellness Plan.
- First Payment If the first payment was entered when setting up the plan, that value carries over to the Recurring Charges screen.
- ✓ **Payment Remaining** This is the balance due for the Wellness Plan.
- Term The length of the plan can be defined when setting up the plan; however, the term can be modified here.
- Payment Account If the client has a credit card number stored within AVImark Payment Solutions, select the credit card from the drop-down list or right-click | New to add a card on the fly. Leave this field blank if clients will be paying the balance of the plan with cash or check.
- Payment Amount With first payment, term, and payments defined, the amount to be charged will display in this field. The amount can be altered, if necessary.
- ✓ **Next Charge** This is the date for the next payment but can be altered.
- ✓ Courtesy Charge You can use this field to set a processing fee or other fee for the plan.
- ✓ Set Charge Plan Click this button to apply the recurring charges.
- ✓ Apply Full Charge Click this button if the client wishes to pay the full amount of the plan.

The full tax amount will be included in the first initial payment even if the client has setup recurring payments.

Altering Recurring Payments

Using AVImark Payment Solutions

- 1. Right-click in the Client area then select **Recurring Payments**.
- 2. Double-click on the recurring payment.
- 3. Modify the payments remaining, amount, or date.
- 4. Click **OK** to save changes.

Without AVImark Payment Solutions

- 1. From the Patient area, right-click | Wellness Plans.
- 2. On the appropriate plan, right-click | **Recurring Charge**.
- 3. In the **Recurring Charges** screen, change the **Payment Account**, **Payment Term**, and the **Next Charge** date.



Wellness Plan Discounting

Services not included in a Wellness Plan can either be discounted or not, during the plan term. The plan discounts for non-included services are known as Courtesy Discounts. Another form of discounting is the use of Client or Patient Discount Classes. For a Wellness Plan, choose if you wish to apply the Wellness Plan Discount, maintain the Client\Patient Class discount, or automatically apply the Best Available discount.

Discount Options

- 1. Click the Wrench button to open **Options Maintenance**.
- 2. Search for wellness.
- 3. Select the option, Wellness Plan Discounting.
- 4. Click **Change** for Default Value.

Options Maintenance File Edit View Help Search wellness						×
Options Client Information Display Definit Wellness Plans Plan Usage will be calculate Wellness Plan Discounting Wellness Plan Only Visit Count	g Charges I from %s. Mus Value Mus Bes Wel	tion Value <u>t Choose</u> <u>t Choose</u> t Available Iness Plan Only	/	 -		
Values Security Default Value Must Choose						
Site	∜ Next	↓ Prior		🗸 ОК	X C	ance
<no data="" display="" to=""></no>						

- 5. Select one of the following options:
 - o **Must Choose** will display a discount window, after a plan is sold, allowing you to choose which discount to apply. This discount will only be active while the plan is active. AVImark will set Must Choose as the default value for this new Discounting Advanced Option.
 - o With **Best Available** selected, all discounts are considered and applied based on the best discount available: individual wellness plan discounts, patient discounts, and client discounts.
 - Wellness Plan Only will override existing discounts and apply the plan Courtesy Discount defined. If both Courtesy Rate and Courtesy Class are defined, AVImark will compare these two discounts and apply the Best Available discount. If a second Wellness Plan is administered, its discount will override the previous Wellness Plans. Also, if the Wellness Plan discount is selected but no Courtesy Discount is defined on the plan, AVImark will not apply a discount to the non-plan services.



Once a Wellness Plan has been added to a patient's Medical History, the services performed and those yet to be performed can be viewed from the patient's record.

- 1. From the **Patient Area**, right-click | **Wellness Plans** or select Wellness Plans under Attachments.
- 2. In the patient's Wellness Plans window, right-click | **Included Services**. This will display the services performed and the services remaining. For services that are to be performed a number of times during the plan term, AVImark will display the Quantity yet to be performed.
- 3. Under **Services Unperformed**, right-click | **Post** to post the service to Medical History.
- 4. Right-click | **View Alternate Codes** to view any alternate codes associated with the service or item. This will open an Alternate Entries window. From within this window you can right-click | **Post** to post the entry into the patient's Medical History.

Upgrading or Cancelling Plans

Upgrading

A patient's Wellness Plan can be upgraded to another plan of higher value.

- 1. In the Patient area, click the Wellness Plans option under **Attachments** or **right-click** and select **Wellness Plans**.
- 2. Left-click on the Wellness Plan that you would like to upgrade and right-click | **Upgrade Plan**. AVImark will display plans that are of greater value than their current plan.
- 3. The codes in common between the current Wellness Plan and the potential upgraded Wellness Plan will display in a **bold** font.
- 4. Select the Wellness Plan to upgrade to and click **Done**. You will need to confirm you wish to upgrade to the selected Wellness Plan, then the Recurring Charges window will appear if the option to do so was selected on that plan.
- 5. The **Total** will display the difference between the two plans and a **First Payment** can be entered, if applicable.
- 6. Click the button, **Set Charge Plan**. AVImark will cancel the current plan and begin calculating from the Wellness Plan the client upgraded to.
- 7. The current Wellness Plan name will now appear in the Plan field in the Patient area and the expiration date will stay the same.
- 8. A code of \$UPG\$ upgrade line will be placed in the patient's Medical History and CANNOT be removed by a right-click | **Remove in Medical History**.

Upgraded plans will show two entries in Accounting each month; one for the original plan charge and a second for the difference in the original and upgraded plan amounts.

Cancelling a Wellness Plan

A plan can be cancelled from within the Patient Wellness Plans window.

1. Choose the Wellness Plan then right-click | Cancel Plan.

AVImark will calculate the usage and remove the plan from the patients plan history. If you wish to refund any portion of the plan to the customer, you can calculate the usage which will show the total of services performed and unperformed allowing you to make a decision on an appropriate amount to refund.



Wellness Plan Versions

Versioning allows clinics to alter Wellness Plans throughout the year and is not retroactive to the patient already on that Wellness Plan.

AVI Change	Puppy Plan								\times
a									
Treatment	Advanced Contract Pri	ces Documents	Whitebo	pard L	aboratory Ass	sociated Entries	Plan Entrie	s Re	Þ
Code	Description				HistoryType	Count	Minimum	Cost	•
4260	Heartworm Test (Occul	t)			Treatment	1	0.00	0.000	
1131	Rabies Canine, 1yr				Treatment	1	0.00	0.000	
1111	Lyme Disease, 1st				Treatment	1	0.00	0.000	
1112	Lyme Disease, 2nd		1		Treatment	1	0.00	0.000	<u></u>
1121	Parvovirus, 1st	New Genera	tion		Treatment	1	0.00	0.000	
1122	Parvovirus, 2nd	Edit	+		Treatment	1	0.00	0.000	
1120	Parvovirus Booster	View	•		Treatment	1	0.00	0.000	
1110	Lyme Disease Booster				Treatment	1	0.00	0.000	
1041	DA2PLCPV, 1ST				Treatment	1	0.00	0.000	
1042	DA2PLCPV, 2ND				Treatment	1	0.00	0.000	
1043	DA2PLCPV, 3RD				Treatment	1	0.00	0.000	
1001 1	Corona 1at				Treatment	1	0.00	0.000	Ť
Auto-re	enew 📃 Include Tag	g Alongs 🛛 🔽 Ca	alculate		Charge		Total Cost	9.75	6
Firs	t Payment 50.00 🜩	Courtes	y Charg	e 0.00	0 🗘 🙀	Т	otal Price	536.3	D
Cour	tesy Class (none) 💌	Cour	tesy Rat	e 0.00		Total Pla	n Amount	0.0	D
Charge Te	erm Count 12 🚔 M	onthly 💌 Te	rm Cour	12 It	+ Month	s 🔻	Remove	Plan	
🛉 Next	t 🛉 Prior					~	🖉 ок 🛛 🗙	Canc	el
Health Plan V	ersion: 1								

Change -	Puppy Plan												\times
2													
Treatment	Advanced Contr	act Prices	Documents	White	eboar	dLa	borator	y Ass	ociated	Entries	Plan Entrie	s Re	Þ
82													
Code	Description						History	Туре	Count		Minimum	Cost	•
4260	Heartworm Test	(Occult)					Treatme	ent		1	0.00	0.000	
1131	Rabies Canine,	1yr				NEW	1		F2	1	0.00	0.000	
1111	Lyme Disease, 1	1st				CHA	NGE		F3	1	0.00	0.000	
1112	Lyme Disease, 2	2nd			×	REM	OVE		F4	1	0.00	0.000	
1121	Parvovirus, 1st					Ano	her	Shift	+F2	1	0.00	0.000	
1122	Parvovirus, 2nd							1	0.00	0.000			
1120	Parvovirus Boost	er			Edit 1 0					0.00	0.000		
1110	Lyme Disease B	looster				View				1	0.00	0.000	
1041	DA2PLCPV, 1S	Г				Cho	ose		+	1	0.00	0.000	
1042	DA2PLCPV, 2N	D			Go to Recordable Entry 1					0.00	0.000	-	
¥[``	D 4 0 D 4 0 D 4 0 D	-			_						0.00	•	Γ
Auto-re	enew 🗌 Inclu	de Tag Ald	ongs 🔽 Ca	lcula	te Pl	an C	harge			-	Total Cost	9.75	6
First	t Payment 50.0	0 💠	Courtes	y Cha	rge	0.00) 📫	%		т	otal Price	536.3	0
Cour	tesy Class (non	e) ▼	Cour	tesy R	late	0.00	*		Tot	tal Pla	n Amount	0.0	0
Charge Te	erm Count 12	Month	ly 🔻 Te	rm Co	ount	12	*	Months	5 🔻		Remov	Plan	
🔶 Next	Prior										🖉 ок 🛛 🔉	Canc	el
lealth Plan V	ersion: 2												



Below is an example of a patient who has two Wellness Plans, one expired and one active, each are on different versions. In addition, the images below show the difference in the two versions.

AVI. Patient Wellness Plans

Edit View Help

Plan Description	Expiration Date	Version	Quantity Performed	Cancel Dat	Quantity Remaining
Puppy Plan	09-28-18	1	0.00		45.00
Puppy Plan	10-04-19	2	0.00		23.00

Wellness Plan Included Services

Edit View Help			
Doctor ANC: Ashley	•		
Services Remaining	Quantity Remaining	Amount	Alt Entries
Advantage Dog <10lbs	12.00	93.00	
Bordetella, 1st	1.00	13.80	
Bordetella, 2nd	1.00	13.80	
Bordetella, Booster	1.00	13.80	
Castration - Canine 21-50lbs	1.00	61.50	
Corona Booster	1.00	14.90	
Corona, 1st	1.00	14.90	
Corona, 2nd	1.00	14.90	
DA2PLCPV, 1ST	1.00	28.00	
DA2PLCPV, 2ND	1.00	28.00	
DA2PLCPV, 3RD	1.00	28.00	
Fecal Exam (Smear)	1.00	10.60	
Heartgard Plus 68 mcg	12.00	15.00	
Heartworm Test (Occult)	1.00	19.10	
Lyme Disease Booster	1.00	0.00	
Lyme Disease, 1st	1.00	17.00	
Lyme Disease, 2nd	1.00	17.00	
Ovariohysterectomy 21-50lbs	1.00	75.50	
Parvovirus Booster	1.00	14.90	

Wellness Plan Included Services

Γ

Edit View Help

Services Remaining	Δ.	Quantity Remaining	Amount	Alt Entries
Advantage Dog <10lbs		2.00	15.50	
Bordetella, 1st		1.00	13.80	
Bordetella, 2nd		1.00	13.80	
Castration - Canine 21-50lbs		1.00	61.50	
DA2PLCPV, 1ST		1.00	28.00	
DA2PLCPV, 2ND		1.00	28.00	
DA2PLCPV, 3RD		1.00	28.00	
Fecal Exam (Smear)		1.00	10.60	
Heartgard Plus 68 mcg		6.00	7.50	
Heartworm Test (Occult)		1.00	19.10	
Lyme Disease, 1st		1.00	17.00	
Lyme Disease, 2nd		1.00	17.00	
Ovariohysterectomy 21-50lbs		1.00	75.50	
Parvovirus, 1st		1.00	14.90	
Parvovirus, 2nd		1.00	14.90	
Rabies Canine, 1yr		1.00	12.80	
Wellness Exam Annual		1.00	0.00	



Refactored Wellness Plan Renewals

When a Wellness Plan is renewed, it will renew to the most recent version. If the patient was on version 1 initially, but now that particular Wellness Plan is on version 2, when the plan auto-renews it will renew to version 2.

Wellness Plan Indicators

Wellness Icon

Chronological (Diagnoses (Diet (Injections (La

- ✓ Green: Active
- ✓ Yellow: Expires within 30 days
- ✓ Red: Expired

Advanced Option for Displaying Expired Wellness Plan Icons

- ✓ Set Display Wellness Plan Indicators to True to activate the icons in AVImark.
- ✓ Set Display Expired Wellness Plan Indicators for # Days to how long the practice chooses to see the Expired icons (red), this is only needed if the clinic does NOT run recurring charges.

CID Plan Indicator



Patient Tab Plan Indicator

Chronological Diagnos	es
Trixie 🍼 Trucker Bob	Γ

Whiteboard Plan Indicator

Whiteboard								
File Edit	View	Help						
Arriving Checked-in Schedule								
Appointm	ents E	Boarding						
From	From 10/4/2018 To 10/4/2018 Show Ghosts							ts
Doctors	Doctors Consolidated							
Client		Patient		Breed		Doctor	Tim △	Tex
Bakerville	, Beth	Trucker Bob	*	Bassett Hound		NL	4:00p	



Appointment Plan Indicator

Time	Dr. N. L'Heureux
10:00a	"Trucker Bob(C)", Boke
10:20a	"Tootsie Roll(C)", B k
10:40a	🔍 "Trixie(C)", Bakervil 🌠 E

AVI Change A	Appointment – 🗆 X					
<u>T</u> reatments	<u>O</u> pening					
Date	10/05/18 Time 10:00a Created 10-04-18 Tx, Items, Dx & Problems					
Doctor	NL: Nikki L'Heureux, DVM 🗾 by JLD					
Room	(all) Vinutes 20					
Client	Bakerville, Beth Phone 573 - 223-3676					
Patient	Trucker Bob V Species Canine					
Breed	Bassett Hound Weight 6.53 lbs Type Puppy Wellness 🔹 🗟 📝 🗸					
Notes	Reminders					
	Patient Name					
O Confirmed ☐ ○ Confirmed						
🗸 New	Client 🗸 New Patient 📝 Done 🕃 Remove 🗶 Quit 💡 Help					

Plan indicator to Appointment Calendar Printout

The plan status will not print on the Appointment Calendar Schedule

- ✓ Yes: Active
- ✓ Y<30: Expires within 30 days</p>
- ✓ Exp: Expired

Doctor: Consolidated

APPOINTMENT SCHEDULE

Time	Room	Dr.	Client	Name	Phone No.	Plan	Patient	Species
10:00a 20 min.		NL	13	Bakerville, Beth	(573) 223-3676	Yes	Trucker Bob	CANINE
10:20a 20 min.		NL	13	Bakerville, Beth	(573) 223-3676	Y<30	Tootsie Roll	CANINE
10:40a 20 min.		NL	13	Bakerville, Beth	(573) 223-3676	Exp	Trixie	CANINE



Wellness Plans Security Options

WI User Functions			– 🗆 X
Edit View Help			
Category	AVImark	functions for Wellness Plans	
Reports	Code	Description	Autho
System Administration	PLN01	Add Plan Generations	
System Tables	PLN02	Modify Wellness Plan Entries	
Tests	PLN03	Remove Wellness Plans	
Time Clock	PLN04	Modify Plan Price Individual Services	
Treatment List			
Wellness Plans			
Whiteboard			
Work Lists			
Find			
Selected			
<no data="" display="" to=""></no>			
			✓ Done 🗙 Cancel

Add Plan Generation

This option restricts users from adding Generations to Wellness Plan treatments. To enable this restriction the option will need to be secured to a user category. Once secured only the user logged in with permission to add a new generation will be allowed to click that option.

Modify Wellness Plans Entries

This option restricts users from going into an open plan (new generation) and making any changes to the plan entries or the plan information. To enable this restriction the option will need to be secured to a user category. Once secured only the user logged in with permission to modify will have the ability to modify the Wellness Plan Entries.

Remove Wellness Plans

This option restricts users from removing a Generation from an open plan without an admin password. To enable this restriction the option will need to be secured to a user category.

Modify Plan Price Individual Services

This option restricts users from editing the Plan Amount on any treatment or item, the field will be greyed out and the user will have to login as a user with permission. To enable this restriction the option will need to be secured to a user category.



Reports

There are Wellness Plans reports available for viewing the activities of Wellness Plans.

Income by Plan Activity

This report will display production statistics for doctors who provide plan services and can be printed by Doctor or Consolidated.

- 1. Click on Work with | Reports.
- 2. Select the Income by Plan Activity report.
 - o **Income** indicates what the price was for each service or item included in the Wellness Plan. In many cases, this will be zero.
 - o **Usage** is the quantity within the time period selected that was used in conjunction with the Wellness Plan.
 - o Normal Price is the normal charge for the service or item without a discount.
 - o **Plan Value** is the Wellness Plan amount multiplied by the usage.

Date of Report: 01-18-17 For period: 01-17-17 - 01-18-17		11	Loving Care Ar	Page1 David N. Sharp, DVM	
Category/Description	Income	Usage	Normal Price	Plan Value	
BOARDING	0.00*	1.00	8.00	0.00	
Day Boarding	0.00	1.00	8.00	0.00	
GROOMING	5.00*	1.00	25.00	0.00	
Bath by groomer	5.00	1.00	25.00	0.00	
LABORATORY, IN-HOUSE	0.00*	1.00	19.00	0.00	
Fecal Examination, Flotation	0.00	1.00	19.00	0.00	
NURSING CARE	0.00*	1.00	12.10	0.00	
Nail Trim	0.00	1.00	12.10	0.00	
VACCINATION, CANINE OTHER	0.00*	1.00	9,25	0.00	
Leptospirosis Vaccination	0.00	1.00	9.25	0.00	
VACCINATION, RABIES	21.00*	3.00	31.50	0.00	
Canine Rabies Vaccination	21.00	3.00	31.50	0.00	
WELLNESS EXAMS	40.00*	2.00	80.00	0.00	
Annual Physical Examination	40.00	2.00	80.00	0.00	
FOOD - RETAIL	0.00*	1.00	55.00	0.00	
Fromms Duck and Sweet Potato 3	0.00	1.00	55.00	0.00	





Wellness Plans Report

A detailed option is available with this report and will provide detailed information on patients currently on Plans.

- 1. Click on Work with | Reports then select the Wellness Plan Report.
- 2. Under the Income Options tab check the option of Detailed Wellness Plan.
- 3. When you print the report the original Wellness Plan Report will print along with an additional report that gives detailed information about patients currently on wellness plans.
- 4. If preview printing the Detailed Plan Report you will need to close the first report and then AVImark will display the detailed report.
- 5. This Detailed Wellness Plan report will list owners and patients currently on plans along with plan information such as Name, Expiration date, services and items fulfilled and those not remaining.

Wellness Plans Report Advanced Option

The number of invoices generated off only wellness plan visits can now be included on the Period Totals report.

- 1. Open **Option Maintenance** by clicking on the **wrench** speed bar button.
- 2. Search for visit and select the new option of Wellness Plan Only Visit Count.
- 3. Click on Change next to Default Value and set it to True.

AVImark will display the total number of Wellness Plan invoices and display that number as a separate line under the Total Invoices on the Period Totals Report.



If a customer received non-plan entries during their visit, it will count as a standard invoice instead of counting as a plan-only visit.

Plan Usage Prompt

AVImark can display a prompt to verify "Plan usage will be calculated from *mm/dd/yy*." This is useful if a Wellness Plan had to be backdated; perhaps there wasn't access to the software or the client purchased an upgrade.

- 1. Open **Option Maintenance** by clicking on the **wrench** speed bar button.
- 2. Search for *plan usage* and select the new option of **Plan Usage will be calculated from %s**.
- 3. Click on Change next to Default Value and set it to OK.

AVImark will calculate the wellness plan usage date automatically without needing verification.



Removing a Wellness Plan from Treatments

Wellness Plans are removed from a Treatment from the treatment's Plan Entries tab.

- 1. From the menu, click on **Work with | Treatment List**.
- 2. Select the treatment with the Wellness Plan to remove then click **Change** or double-click on the treatment.
- 3. Click on the Plan Entries tab.
- 4. Click the **Remove Plan** button. The following warning will appear:

Confirm	X
?	Would you like to remove wellness plan from this treatment? WARNING: Removing this wellness plan will remove this from any patients currently on the plan.
	<u>Yes</u> <u>N</u> o

5. Click Yes if you are sure you want to remove the plan.





Additional Enhancements

Medical History Tab for Plans

The new **Plan** tab will display the wellness plan purchased and the included services the patient has purchased through the plan. In the images below, code 1121 was given with the plan and then again as a service. Once the plan quantity had been filled, it only shows once on the Plan tab.

Plan Date	Time	Dr.	Туре	Code	Description	Qty	Amount
10-04-18	10:34a	CL	T (m)	4225	Fecal Exam (Smear)	1	0.00
10-04-18	10:34a	CL	Т	BOB3	Wellness Exam Annual	1	0.00
10-04-18	10:33a	CL	Т	1041	DA2PLCPV, 1ST	1	0.00
10-04-18	10:33a	CL	Т	1121	Parvovirus, 1st	1	0.00
10-04-18	10:03a	CL	T (m)	PUPPLA	Puppy Plan	1	50.00
SOAP	Photos (N	otes	Public	Problems //	Attachments (Dental (Requisitions /	Radiographs Pla	n/ 💌

 Medical 	Medical History							
Date	Time	Dr.	Туре	Code	Description		Qty	Amount
10-04-18	12:10p	DL	Т	1121	Parvovirus, 1st		1	14.90
10-04-18	10:34a	CL	D	ZB9080	BITING		1	0.00
10-04-18	10:34a	CL	D	ZD8252	DESTRUCTIVENESS		1	0.00
10-04-18	10:34a	CL	D	ZI2483	INAPPROPRIATE URINATION		1	0.00
10-04-18	10:34a	CL	D	ZB6082	BEHAVIOR PROBLEM		1	0.00
10-04-18	10:34a	CL	T (m)	4225	Fecal Exam (Smear)		1	0.00
10-04-18	10:34a	CL	Т	BOB3	Wellness Exam Annual		1	0.00
10-04-18	10:33a	CL	Т	1041	DA2PLCPV, 1ST		1	0.00
10-04-18	10:33a	CL	Т	1121	Parvovirus, 1st		1	0.00
10-04-18	10:31a	CRP	V (m)	VISIT	Patient check-in			
10-04-18	10:03a	CL	T (m)	PUPPLAN	Puppy Plan		1	50.00
Chronolog	ical /Dia	anoeo	e (Diot)	Injectione	Lab / Ry / Reminder / Surgery / Vac	es / V-Pov	1.50	
Chronolog		gnose		injections /		All A-Ray	V 201	



Client Friendly Print-out of Services Used and Remaining

This report can be printed from both the client area and the Patient Wellness Plan window.

			Health Plan Report		
Client:	Bakerville, Beth 420 West Green S Piedmont, IL 6395	Street 57			
Patient:	Tootsie Roll Canine Spayed I	Female			
Plan:	Puppy Plan (PUP Active: Expires: Balance:	PLAN) True 11-02-18 0.00			
Service Heartwo Rabies Lyme D	es UnPerformed orm Test (Occult) Canine, 1yr Disease, 1st			Quantity Remaining 1.00 1.00 1.00	Amount 19.10 12.80 17.00
Parvovii Parvovii Parvovii Parvovii	nsease, 2nd rus, 1st rus, 2nd rus Booster bisease Booster			1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00	17.00 14.90 14.90 14.90 0.00
DA2PLO DA2PLO DA2PLO DA2PLO Corona	CPV, 1ST CPV, 2ND CPV, 3RD			1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00	28.00 28.00 28.00 14.90
Corona Corona Bordete Bordete	, 2nd Booster ella, 1st ella, 2nd			1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00	14.90 14.90 13.80 13.80
Bordete Wellnes Fecal E	ella, Booster ss Exam Annual (xam (Smear) ard Plus 68 mcg			1.00 1.00 1.00 1200	13.80 0.00 10.60 15.00
Advanta Castrat Ovarioh	age Dog <10lbs ion - Canine 21-50l lysterectomy 21-50l	bs bs		12.00 1.00 1.00	93.00 61.50 75.50
Service	es Performed		Date	Quantity Performed	Amount
Patient	Trucker Bob Canine Male			Total	0.00
Plan:	Puppy Plan (PUP Active: Expires: Balance:	PLAN) True 10-04-19 99.50			
Service Heartwo Rabies Lyme D Lyme D Parvovii Parvovii Lyme D	es UnPerformed orm Test (Occult) Canine, 1yr visease, 1st visease, 2nd rus, 2nd rus Booster visease Booster CBV 2ND			Quantity Remaining 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.0	Amount 19.10 12.80 17.00 14.90 14.90 14.90 0.00 29.00
DA2PLO DA2PLO Corona	CPV, 3RD , 1st			1.00 1.00 1.00	28.00 28.00 14.90



Client Area – Printing from the client area will list all patients on active Plans for that Client in one report.

AVI Client	t Information Display - Jamie	urr	- 🗆 ×
Clients \	Work with Services Appl	ations View Utilities Help	
a 🛛) 🗟 🛅 🍃	$\begin{array}{c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c $	鸄 🥓 😋 😪 🎓 🄇
- CLIEN	T: Beth Bakerville -		No. 13
Name	Bakerville	First Beth Title	Attachments
Address	420 West Green Street	Phone 573 223-3676 Codes A	Accounting
		NEW E2 23-7153 Class 02	Notes
City	Piedmont	CHANCE E2 Balance 0.00	Referrals
Zip Code	63957 E-mail be	29-2879 Folder 0 Co. 0	1
Referral	yellow pages		
Bakervi	lle, B	S POST (Create invoice) F8	
PATIEN	T Trucker Bob	REMOVE F4	No. 120
Name	Tauahaa Dah	S Accounting F10	
Name	Trucker Bob	Alert	
Birthday	08-09-18 Age 8w	🔍 Choose Esc	
Breed	Bassett Hound	Close Ctrl+F2	
Color	Brindle	🚯 Dial	
Species	Canine	File Attachments	nate (Ownershin Schedule
Plan		Instructions Shift+F5	
Date	Time Dr. Type (Invoice Qty Amou	nt Attachments
10-04-18	10:34a CL T (m) 4	Label 1 0.	00 🔽 Dental Chart
10-04-18	10:34a CL T E	More Stuff 1 0.	00 🔲 Form
10-04-18	10:33a CL T 1	Photo 1 0.	00 🔲 Inventory Used
10-04-18	10:33a CL I I 10:03a CL T (m) I	Proto 1 0.	Medical Condition
10-04-10	10.054 CE 1 (III) 1	Pre-invoice Shift+Ctri+F8	More Stuff
		Reprint statement	Notes
		Send e-mail	Photograph
		View •	Attachments
		🔅 Health Plans Status Report	Vaccination
			Tests
			Radiographs
SOAP (Photos (Notes (Public (Pr	lems /Attachments /Dental /Requisitions /Radiographs) Plan /	Hoof Chart
Trivie			
I TIAIC	A THUCKELDOD		

Patient Wellness Plans Window – Printing from this window allows you to print for just that patient and for just the Wellness Plan you have highlighted or print all active plans for the selected patient.





Doctor Selection Combo-box

The doctor selected in the **Doctor** field will be the user who is placed in Medical History for entries highlighted before right-clicking and selecting **Post**.

Wellne	ess Plan Included Services					
Edit Vie	ew Help					
Doct	or CL: Chris L'Heureux	DVM	•			
Code	Services Unperformed		Quantity Remaining		Amount	Alt Entries
4260	Heartworm Test (Occ	ult)		1.00	19.10	
1131	Rabies Canine, 1yr		1.00		12.80	
1111	Lyme Disease, 1st		1.00		17.00	
1112	Lyme Disease, 2nd		1.00		17.00	
1121	Parvovirus, 1st			1.00	14.90	
1122	Parvovirus, 2nd	Edit	+	1.00	14.90	
1120	Parvovirus Booster	View	+	1.00	14.90	
1110	Lyme Disease Boost	Post		1.00	0.00	
1041	DA2PLCPV, 1ST	View Alternate Code	×s	1.00	28.00	
1042	DA2PLCPV, 2ND			1.00	28.00	
1043	DA2PLCPV, 3RD			1.00	28.00	

Included Services Heading

The heading "UnPerformed" has been changed to "Services Remaining". This requires a default layout to make the name change due to AVImark did not want to undo the clinics columns without their consent.

Services Domaining	(Quantity D	Quantity Pomaining Amount				
		1 00	Amou	281		
Heartaard Plue 68 mea		12.00				
leartyare Fus to file		12.00	10.			
verse Disease Baseter		1.00	13.			
vme Disease Booster		T_UU		482 5		
•				•		
Services Performed	Date	Quantity	Ar	nount		
Parvovirus, 1st	10-04-18	1	.00	14.90		
DA2PLCPV, 1ST	10-04-18	1	.00	28.00		
Nellagon Exem Appuel	10-04-18	1	.00	0.00		
Weiness Exam Annual						

